
 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 
PLEASURE ISLAND SHORE PROTECTION 

REVISED BREAKWATER-MARSH RESTORATION PROJECT 

Addendum No. 2 
Questions and Answers 

March 15, 2013  

This addendum addresses the questions asked during the mandatory pre-bid conference held on 
Tuesday, March 12, 2013 at 10:00 AM CST in the Engineering Department conference room at the 
Jefferson County Courthouse. 

 

Item 1—Corrections: 

Sheet As discussed at the meeting, the correct dimension for the width of the toe of the transition section 
(Sheet C-1010, Detail 2) is actually 5.48 ft not the 10.95 ft that is dimensioned on the drawing. This is 
simply a typographical issue and does not affect the quantities in the Bid Schedule.  

Additionally, for clarification purposes, the breakwater sections shown in Detail 2 on Sheet C-1005 and 
the Type B circulation channel shown on Sheets C-1008 and C-1009 are included only for flexibility 
during construction, but are not used as a construction section or any other component of this project 
without Engineer approval.  

Item 2: 

The following are responses to questions posed prior to or during the Pre-Bid meeting: 

1. Question: Is there a deadline for questions? 

Response: Answer given at the Pre-Bid meeting was close of business on Thursday, March 14, 
2013. Questions received after this time cannot be assured of a response. 

2. Question: Is there a required gradation for Core stone? 

Response: The design intent is that the Core material will occupy the volume between existing grade 
and Bedding Stone without consolidation, i.e., granular material. Bedding Stone meets this intent 
and may be used to form the Core, but Engineer will allow other materials that meet the design 
intent upon Contractor submittal. 

3. Question: Is there a Buy American clause for this contract? 

Response: Yes. Federal funds are the primary funding source for the project. The Davis-Bacon Act 
regarding wage rates also applies. 

4. Question: Is there Geotechnical information available? Will the Geotechnical Investigation report 
and Permit be made available? 

Response: Boring logs and geotechnical reports for several adjacent locations will be posted. The 
applicable USACE permit is attached. 

5. Question: Is there a description for Control Monuments 1B and 2A? 

Response: The referenced control monuments are Concrete Monuments with 3” Brass Disks. 

6. Question: Does the Warranty cover subsidence? 

Response: The warranty relates to defects in materials and workmanship. Contractor responsibility 
for vertical movement of materials after acceptance is limited to that caused by such defects. Care 



 

 

should be taken to limit disturbance of existing foundation soils that could result in excessive 
movement. 

7. Question: Are there restrictions on the methods for dredging?  

Response:  Mechanical excavation is expected for the structure toe. USACE permit and associated 
TCEQ water quality certification also apply. Prop washing of float channel is not likely to comply 
with TCEQ provisions and in any event must not degrade the 50 ft zone seaward of the structure 
toe. 

8. Question: Can a contractor submit an alternate bond form? 

Response: Yes. A form is provided in the bid package for convenience only. 

9. Question: Is there an anticipated date for Notice to Proceed? 

Response: NTP is typically issued at the conclusion of the pre-construction conference. Contract 
award is anticipated at the Commissioner’s Court Meeting on the Monday following bid opening 
(March 25, 2013 based on March 19, 2013 bid opening). After approval by Commissioner’s court, 
the Contractor has 10 days to finalize the contract. When the final contract is completed and 
approved, the pre-construction conference will be scheduled as quickly as is convenient for all 
stake holders. 

10. Question: Is there a form to fill out the requested Subcontractor and Rock Supplier information? 

Response: A form for “Potential Rock Source and Potential Subcontractors’” is included in “Exhibit 
C“ in this Addendum. 

11. Question: Are rail weights acceptable? 

Response: Yes. 

12. Question: Is there a flexibility in the +0.5’ over, 0.0 under tolerances given the rock size? 

Response: Flexibility is provided in that the tolerances are averaged over a 100 sq ft area. Design 
intent is that the lines and grades be met or exceeded while limiting payment for overfill. 

13. Question: Can Digtest/811 be used for utilities instead of One Call? 

Response: Yes. 

14. Question: When was the last verification of depth? 

Response: The last survey of depths along the alignment of the breakwater was conducted in 
November, 2012. 

15. Question: Is there a more specific criteria to determine satisfactory compaction of the embankment? 

Response: None other than that described in Section 31 23 00 of the Specifications. 

16. Question: Can a hydraulic excavator be used to place stone? 

Response: Yes. 

17. Question: Impacts of settlement on stone quantities? 

Response: Total project length may be adjusted to account for actual quantities. Funding constraints 
make it unlikely that additional materials will be required beyond the initially contracted amounts. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Item 3: 

The following are responses to questions received after the Pre-Bid meeting: 



 

 

18. Question: At what point(s) in time will the warranty requirements be assessed? Once the project 
has achieved final acceptance upon completion of initial construction, at what interval(s) of time will 
the elevations or other criteria be measured to determine if additional construction will be required to 
comply with the warranty requirements? On previous breakwater construction projects we have 
completed, the settlement/movement of the breakwater was taken into account in the design and field 
adjustments made as necessary to achieve the intended product. It would be much more cost 
effective for this project to allow for all anticipated settlement in the initial construction work and 
achieve final and complete acceptance once construction was completed such that the bidder does 
not have to include additional costs for the potential to remobilize to re-construct portions of the work. 

Response: See response to Item 2.6 above. 

19. Question: Do all warranty requirements end at the termination of one year from the date of initial 
acceptance or, does the warranty period extend to work conducted to comply with the initial 
warranty? In other words, is there a warranty period for the work conducted under warranty?  At what 
point is the contractor relieved of all warranty obligations? 

Response: The warranty period would be extended only for the portion of the work redone.  

20. Question: What is the criteria for “sound intrusion”? At what level of noise during what time of day 
will noise attenuation, if any, be required? 

Response: Engineer is not aware of any noise abatement requirements (such as City of Port Arthur 
requirements) between 7am and 10pm. 

21. Question: Please provide all geotechnical data associated with the construction area including a 
map or coordinates of the boring locations. 

Response: See “Exhibit A”. 

22. Question: The contractor is required to maintain the constructed breakwater until acceptance.  At 
what frequency will the completed construction work be accepted, daily, weekly? 

Response: Generally, monthly in association with payment applications detailed in Section 01 20 00. 

23. Question: With regard to all surveying and other quality control requirements, at what frequency will 
inspection of delivered materials, staking, control point confirmation, inspection of areas to receive 
stone, and all other on site quality control requirements be conducted and approved? 

Response: Owner and Engineer will coordinate oversight at key times to keep pace with Contractor 
needs, recognizing that open excavations are subject to effects of ship wakes. 

24. Question: The work area is known to be a very dynamic environment due to substantial and 
frequent induced tidal surge events caused by the passing of vessels. For what period of time will the 
contractor be obligated to maintain the structure prior to acceptance? 

Response: Generally, on a month to month basis associated with the payment application cycle. 

25. Question: How much settlement is expected once the breakwater is installed? 

Response: The long term settlement anticipated per geotechnical information is on the order of 6 
inches. 

26. Question: With regard to Alternates 1 and 2, will there be a lay down area available for these 
work sites and other land-based access points? 

Response: Yes. Lay down areas will be coordinated among Contractor, Engineer, and Owner. 

27. Question: In regard to potential settlement of the breakwater, how much settlement was assumed 
during the design phase in order to calculate the volume and overall tonnage for the project for the 
base bid and alternates? Can we assume that if additional settlement occurs prior to acceptance or 



 

 

prior to completion of the project, additional rock may be added as necessary and the contractor will 
be compensated for the additional tonnage? 

Response: Quantities were not adjusted to account for settlement. See also response to Item 2.17 
above. 

28. Question: How is the excavation volume to be measured? 

Response: Pre- and post-excavation survey data.  

29. Question: Is there bathymetry available for the Alternate work sites and a design illustrating existing 
conditions. Might the Type 2 cross section be applicable in the alternate construction areas due to 
deeper water? 

Response: Use of Type 2 is not intended and unlikely based on inspection of the site. 

30. Question: Is the material dredged from the floatation channel to be placed on the landward side of 
the breakwater? If so, what confinement or other flow control measures are required? 

Response: The float channel material may be replaced in float channel. 

31. Question: Is a Registered Professional Land Surveyor required to conduct all surveying for 
construction or will LJA Engineering conduct quality control of the contractor’s survey technicians for 
construction and final acceptance criteria? 

Response: Not necessarily, but survey methods are subject to Engineer acceptance.  

32. Question: The general notes on the Page entitled Breakwater Construction Notes refers to the float 
channel dredging. What are the required dimensions for the float channel? 

Response: The depth of the float channel is regulated by the USACE permit to a maximum of 8 ft. 
No width constraint is indicated. Engineer desires minimum disturbance to existing grade seaward 
of breakwater footprint consistent with Contractor’s efficient execution of the work. Note the 
minimum clear-distance of 50 ft between the float channel and the toe of the breakwater that must 
be maintained for stability.  

33. What material may be placed landward side of the breakwater, between the breakwater and the 
shoreline? 

Response: Generally, soil and concrete encountered during excavation may remain on site, subject 
to Engineer approval. 

 
  



 

 

 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

PLEASURE ISLAND SHORE PROTECTION 
REVISED BREAKWATER-MARSH RESTORATION PROJECT 

Addendum No. 2 
Questions and Answers 

Exhibit A 

Geotechnical Information 
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LOCATION: See Plates 1 and 2 
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NOTES 
DATE: May 18, 2001 

TOTAL DEPTH: 30.0' 
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,ffi'i ;  k# t\-/ DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
GALVESTON DISTRICT, CORPS OF ENGINEERS

P. O. BOX 1229
GALVESTON TX 77 553-1229

January 4.2007
REPLY TO
ATTETiTION OF:

Evaluation Section

SUBJECT: Permit No. 22285(01); Extension of Time

Donald Rao
Jefferson County Engineering Department
1149 Pearl Street, 5th Floor
Beaumont, Texas 777 0l-3638

Dear Mr. Rao:

Your request, dated November 22,2006, to amend Permit No. 22285 for an extension of time
is approved pursuant to Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 and Section 404 of the
Clean Water Act. Permit No. 22285 was issued on December 6,200I, and authorized
stabilization activities along a 4-mile-long stretch of eroded shoreline on Pleasure Island. These
activities include: l) installation of bulkheads; 2) the placement of riprap into the Sabine-Neches
Waterway; 3) and the construction of offshore breakwaters. The project site is located along a 4-
mile stretch of eroded shoreline on the western side of Pleasure Island, along the Sabine-Neches
Waterway, south of Port Arthur, in Jefferson County, Texas.

All work is to be performed in accordance with the enclosed plans in 9 sheets and the
original permit conditions, which remain in fulIforce and effect, with the exception of the time
limit for completion. This authorization expires on December 31, 2012. Please note the
enclosed Notification of Administrative Appeal Options and Process (NAP) and Request for
Appeal (RFA) form regarding this permit.

This letter also contains an approved jurisdictional determination for your subject site. If you
object to this determination, you may request an administrative appeal under Corps regulations at
33 CFR Part 331. Enclosed you will find a combined NAP and RFA form. If you request to
appeal this determination you must submit a completed RFA form to the Southwestem Division
Office at the following address:

James E. Gilmore, Appeal Review Officer
Southwestern Division, CES WD-CMO-E
1100 Commerce Street, Room 8E9
Dallas, Texas 75242-0216
Telephone: 469-487-7061 ; FAX: 469-487 -7 190

(ru;



.
\ ,

-2-

In order for an RFA to be accepted by the Corps, the Corps must determine that it is
complete, that it meets the criteria for appeal under 33 CFR Part 331.5, and that it has been
received by the Division Office within 60 days of the date of the NAP. Should you decide to
submit an RFA form, it must be received at the above address by March 7,2007. It is not
necessary to submit an RFA form to the Division Office if you do not object to the determination
in this letter.

The Supreme Court handed down a decision on June 19,2006, which addresses the scope of
Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction over certain waters of the United States, including
wetlands. In the near future, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and Corps intend to
issue joint guidance clarifying CWA jurisdiction in light of the decision. Your permit may be
affected by this guidance. However, we are issuing you this permit, with its existing terms and
conditions, and the amount of required compensatory mitigation can be re-evaluated based on
that new guidance when it is issued.

Please notify the District Commander, in writing, upon completion of the authorized work.
A pre-addressed postcard has been enclosed for your convenience.

FOR THE DISTRICT COMMANDER:

Bruce H. Bennett
Leader, North Evaluation Unit

Enclosures

Copies Furnished:

Eighth Coast Guard District, New Orleans, LA

NOAAAIOS, Coast & Geodetic Survey, Silver Spring, MD

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Houston, TX

Texas General Land Office, Austin, TX

Texas General Land Office, La Porte, TX

Northern Area Office, Galveston, TX

Port Arthur Project Office, Port Arthur, TX
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 
PLEASURE ISLAND SHORE PROTECTION 

REVISED BREAKWATER-MARSH RESTORATION PROJECT 
STONE SOURCE AND SUBCONTRACTORS 

 

SOURCE—ARMOR AND BEDDING STONE 
 
Company Name: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Point of Contact: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Email Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Company Name: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Point of Contact: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Email Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBCONTRACTORS 
(Complete additional pages as necessary) 

Company Name: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Point of Contact: _____________________________________________________________________ 
Email Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: ______________________________________________________________________ 
Subcontracting Opportunity, Scope of Work: 
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Company Name: ________________________________________________________________ 
Point of Contact: ________________________________________________________________ 
Email Address: _________________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number: _________________________________________________________________ 
Subcontracting Opportunity, Scope of Work: 
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
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